
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MPC MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 
 
 12:30 P.M. 
 

TOWN HALL  
BASEMENT MEETING ROOM 



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
3. PREVIOUS MINUTES 

5 A) Minutes of July 17, 2019 meeting  

 
4. REPORTS TO MPC 

9 A) Dates Development Permits advertised in Commentator 

a. July 23, 2019, September 3, 2019, September 17, 2019 and 
October 8, 2019 (Ads are attached)  

 B) Development Permit Applications Approved/Denied by 
Development Officer since the last MPC meeting: 

a. Development Permit Application 19-DP-046 
Phil Byam 
Lots 28-30, Block 18, Plan 1117V (618 2 Street SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Portable Garage  

b. Development Permit Application 19-DP-047 
Bishop Koch 
Lots 13-14, Block 1, Plan 7361JK (14 Birch Court SE) 
Approved: Permit to Stay  

c. Development Permit Application 19-DP-048 
NewRock Developments 
Lot 5, Block 10, Plan 0913590 (914 9 Avenue SE) 
Approved: Duplex  

d. Development Permit Application 19-DP-049 
Trevor Evans 
Lot 6, Block 10, Plan 0913590 (1122 9 Avenue SE) 
Approved: Hot Tub 

e. Development Permit Application 19-DP-050 
Lana Major 
Unit 14,  Plan 0714919 (138 3 Street NE) 
Approved: Home Occupation – Nail Salon – Manicures & Gel 
Nails 

1



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

f. Development Permit Application 19-DP-051 
Badlands Truck & Trailer Repair 
Lot 1, Block 1, Plan 7510870 (#1 602 South Railway Drive NE) 
Approved: Free Standing Sign 

g. Development Permit Application 19-DP-052 
Julio’s Electric 
Lot 8, Block 13, Plan 0913590 (927 Memorial Drive SE) 
Approved: Hot Tub 

h. Development Permit Application 19-DP-053 
NalCo 
Lot 12, Block 5, Plan 7911064 (1811 Broadway Avenue E) 
Approved: Change of Use – Oil & Gas Service Industry 

i. Development Permit Application 19-DP-054 
Folium Biosciences 
Lot 10, Block C, Plan 0414274 (1711 Dirkson Drive NE) 
Approved: Change of Use – Light Manufacturing 

j. Development Permit Application 19-DP-055 
Yuuup Storage 
Lot 7, Block A, Plan 9111515 (315 Mitchell Street N) 
Approved: Change of Use – Storage Yard – Mini Storage 

k. Development Permit Application 19-DP-056 
Vince Walker 
Lot 53, Block 121, Plan 0714603 (236 4 Street NW) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Detached Garage 

l. Development Permit Application 19-DP-057 
Carter Law Office 
Lot 53, Block 130, Plan 1511392 (31 3 Street NW) 
Approved: Permit to Stay 

m. Development Permit Application 19-DP-058 
Andre Thierren 
Lots 1-3, Block 47, Plan 1117V (235 5 Street SE) 
Approved: Boulevard Development 

n. Development Permit Application 19-DP-059 
Dylan Besplug 
Lots 9-10, Block 29, Plan 1117V (321 Main Street S) 
Approved: Home Occupation – Office Use Only 

o. Development Permit Application 19-DP-060 
Matthew Clark 
Lot 20, Block 80, Plan 9310188 (30 6 Street NE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Garden Shed 

2



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

p. Development Permit Application 19-DP-061 
Sillinger Construction  
Lot 10, Block A, Plan 4870AL (515 7 Street SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Garage 

q. Development Permit Application 19-DP-062 
Dwelling Places Inc. 
Lot 29, Block 10, Plan 0913590 (944 Maskell Place SE) 
Approved: Single Family Home 

r. Development Permit Application 19-DP-063 
Dwelling Places Inc. 
Lot 28, Block 10, Plan 0913590 (948 Maskell Place SE) 
Approved: Single Family Home 

s. Development Permit Application 19-DP-064 
Ask The Experts 
Lot 10, Block 6, Plan 9711977 (#8–1500 South Highway Drive 
SE) 
Approved: Change of Use – Office Space 

t. Development Permit Application 19-DP-065 
Wildrose Custom Homes 
Lots 15-16, Block 16, Plan 1117V (409 1 Street SE) 
Approved: Renovations to Home 

u. Development Permit Application 19-DP-066 
Trudy McKinnon 
Lots 11-12, Block 25, Plan 1117V (317 4 Street SE) 
Approved: Boulevard Development 

v. Development Permit Application 19-DP-067 
Sara Weins 
Lots 9-10, Block 25, Plan 1117V (321 4 Street SE) 
Approved: Boulevard Development 

w. Development Permit Application 19-DP-068 
Geri Works 
Lot 6, Block 2, Plan 123JK (6 Elm Court SE) 
Approved: Home Occupation 

	 C) Appeals of Development Decisions received since the last MPC 
meeting 

a. No Appeals of Development decisions have been received. 

3



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

	 D) SDAB Decisions rendered since the last MPC meeting 

a. No SDAB Decisions have been rendered since the last MPC 
meeting. 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

E) Council Decisions and Direction related to the Land Use Bylaw 
since the last MPC meeting 

a. No Decisions or Directions related to the Land Use Bylaw have 
been received. 

F) Items Received for Information 

a. No items received for information have been received. 

 

 

	
5. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION(S) FOR MPC DECISION 

 

11 A) Development Permit Application 19-DP-071   
BL and Son Custom Contracting Ltd.  
Lots 11-12, Block 54, Plan 1117V (101 1 Street SE) 
Secondary Suite 

a. Application 

b. Background report 

c. Procedure 

i. Presentation of Development Officer 

ii. Presentation of Applicant 

iii. Presentation of Interested Parties 

iv. MPC Discussion (Note, MPC may go in camera for 
discussion) 

v. Decision of MPC 

 

	
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

4



   

 
  MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY JULY 17, 2019 – 12:30 PM 
TOWN OF REDCLIFF  

 
PRESENT: Members:     S. Gale, L. Leipert, 

J. Beach, N. Stebanuk, 
J. Steinke arrived at 12:42 p.m. 

    
   Development Officer    B. Stehr 
   Director of Planning & Engineering  J. Johansen 
   Technical Assistant/Recording Secretary R. Arabsky 
 

19-DP-038 APPLICANTS:      Dale Koska, Danny Meier,  
Trent Guest 

 
       
 ABSENT: Members:     B. Duncan, B. Vine 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

S. Gale called the meeting to order at 12:40 p.m. 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

L. Leipert moved that the agenda be adopted as presented. – Carried. 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES 

A) N. Stebanuk moved the minutes of the MPC meeting June 19, 2019 be adopted as 
presented. – Carried. 

 

4. REPORTS TO MPC 

J. Beach moved to receive for information the following Reports to MPC for the MPC 
Meeting of June 19, 2019:  

A) Dates Development Permits advertised in Commentator 

a. July 2, 2019 & May 21, 2019 

B) Development Permit Applications approved/denied by Development Officer 
since the last MPC meeting: 

5



            
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2019         Page   2 of 4 

a. Development Permit Application 19-DP-037 
Jeffrey Nygaard 
Lots 14-15, Block 85, Plan 1117V (16 2 Street NE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Detached Garage 

b. Development Permit Application 19-DP-039 
Donna Dumay 
Lots 33-34, Block 17, Plan 1117V (426 3 Street SE) 
Approved: Home Occupation – Massage Therapy 

c. Development Permit Application 19-DP-041 
Willy Friesen 
Unit 10, Plan 9511390 (#20 – 900 Highway Avenue E) 
Approved: Change of Use – Retail Store 

d. Development Permit Application 19-DP-042 
Stephen Jones 
Lots 12-13, Block 9, Plan 3042AV (613 6 St. SE) 
Approved: Attached Deck  

e. Development Permit Application 19-DP-043 
Riki Brown 
Lot 36, Block 20, Plan 7810529 (816 6 St. SE) 
Approved: Hot Tub  

f. Development Permit Application 19-DP-045 
Robin’s Nest Development’s 
Lot 12, Block 5, Plan 7911064 (1811 Broadway Avenue E) 
Approved: Interior Renovations  

C) Appeals of Development Decisions received since the last MPC Meeting. 

a. No Appeals of Development decisions have been received. 

D) SDAB Decisions rendered since the last MPC Meeting. 

No SDAB Decisions have been rendered since the last MPC meeting. 

E) Council Decisions and Direction related to the Land Use Bylaw since the last 
MPC. 

a. No Decisions or Directions related to the Land Use Bylaw have been 
received 

F) Items Received for Information 

a. No items received for information have been received.  

- Carried. 

5. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION(S) FOR MPC APPROVAL 

A) Development Permit Application 19-DP-038 
Dale Koska 
NE16-13-6-W4 
Race Track 

L. Leipert moved that Development Permit Application 19-DP-038 for a Dirt Racetrack 
to be located in NE 16; 13; 6; W4 be approved subject to the following conditions: 

6



            
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2019         Page   3 of 4 

a. The Applicant enter into an agreement with the Town of Redcliff to either lease or 
purchase the property; 

b. Applicant to provide a detailed Site Plan, to the satisfaction of the Development Officer, 
which identifies the following items:  

1. Concession area(s); 

2. Flag tower; 

3. Tech pad; 

4. Washroom facilities; 

5. Ticket boxes; 

6. Office area 

c. The applicant to provide plans, drawings, reports as may be required to fully address 
the issues to be dealt with in the Development Agreement to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Planning and Engineering. 

d. That detailed Site Plan, plans, drawings and reports required to fully address the issues 
to be dealt with in the Development Agreement to the satisfaction of MPC. 

e. The Applicant enter into a Development Agreement with the Town to cover the 
developer’s responsibilities to: 

1. Sanitary services 

2. Potable water 

3. Storm water management 

4. Fire fighting  

5. Access 

6. Erosion and dust control, 

7. Spills and contaminate cleanup and migration. 

8. Circulation to and sign off, and plans by AltaLink for development in their ROW, 

9. Post security for the completion of developer improvements, restoration of 
municipal infrastructure damaged by the construction of improvements, and 
completion of developer obligations under the Development Approval and 
Development Agreement.  Typically, security will not be less than the value of 
the construction of municipal improvements that are the responsibility of the 
Developer and under no circumstances less than $5,000. 

f. The Applicant shall conform to the Noise Bylaw (Bylaw 1186/1998); 

g. Lighting to facilitate racing shall require a separate Development Permit; 

h. The Development Permit is valid for five (5) years; 

i. The Town will issue a permit in year 4 if in the opinion of the Development Authority 
that the Racetrack is not causing a negative impact on the adjacent properties, and still 
complies with the Site Plan, and the conditions of the Development Permit; 

7



            
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2019         Page   4 of 4 

j. Where the Town finds that the conditions of the Development Permit &/or the Site Plan 
are not been met or that the use is causing undesirable impacts to the Town, the Town 
will issue a notice to the Applicant six (6) months in advance of the expiring permit, that 
the Town will not be automatically renewing the use and Development Permit. The 
notice to the Applicant must include: 

i. The reasons the permit is not being renewed, 

ii. The date of the permit expiring, and 

iii. That if the Applicant wishes to continue with the use, the Applicant must make 
submit a new application for a Development Permit. 

k. Should the Town fail to issue a new Development Permit before the expiration of this 
Development Permit the Development will automatically be renewed for another five (5) 
years. 

- Carried. 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

S. Gale moved adjournment of the meeting at 12:47 p.m. – Carried. 

      
   Chairman     

 
      
Recording Secretary  

   

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISION 
 

Planning & Engineering Report 
 

 
October 10, 2019 
 
Development Permit Application: 19-DP-071 Secondary Suite 

Applicant:      BL and Son Custom Contracting 

Owner:       Angela Schenkey 

Property Address:     101 1 Street SE 

Legal Address:     Lot 11-12, Block 54, Plan 1117V 

Land Use: R-1 Single Family Residential District 

Development Officer:     Brian Stehr 

 
1. BACKGROUND:           
 
On October 10, 2019 Daniel Leger of BL and Son Custom Contracting Ltd. submitted a 
Development Permit Application for a secondary suite in the attic area of the house at 101 1 
Street SE. 
 
In speaking with the Applicant, the renovation is being done in hopes of creating more living 
space. Currently the house is not large enough for the family, who are looking for a solution to 
create more usable space. It is not their intention to rent this space out.  
 
After reviewing the plans and noting that access to the proposed development was from the 
exterior of the home, it was the Development Officer’s opinion that there was potential to rent 
this space out. The Development Officer deemed the use to be a Secondary Suite as defined by 
the Town of Redcliff’s Land Use Bylaw. 
 
 
2.   PLANNING & ENGINEERING COMMENTS        
 
 
The Land Use Bylaw (1198/2011) Section 103 – R-1 Single Family Residential District lists a 
Secondary Suite as a Discretionary Use – Commission. As such, Development Permit 
Application 19-DP-071 is being forwarded to you for consideration. 
 
 
3. ADDITIONAL PLANNING & ENGINEERING COMMENTS      
 
 
With respect to the MDP, LUB, and other statutory documents, Planning & Engineering offers 
the following concerns and opinions in regards to the development permit application: 
 

21



1. The proposed development conforms to the Town of Redcliff’s Municipal Development 

Plan, and any other Statutory Plans; 

2. The Land Use Bylaw defines a Secondary Suite as: 

- A second self-contained dwelling unit located within the single detached 

dwelling on a parcel. 

3. Section 79 Secondary and Garden Suites of the Land Use Bylaw states: 

1) General Regulations 

a) The number of secondary or garden suites per single detached dwelling is 

limited to one (1) suite. 

b) The resident owner shall submit and sign a statutory declaration stating that 

he/she is the principal resident of the primary dwelling unit and occupancy of 

the principal dwelling by the owner shall be a condition of a Development 

Permit for a secondary or garden suite. 

c) A minimum of one (1) off-street parking space shall be provided for the 

exclusive use of the secondary or garden suite. 

d) If parking space is provided in the required front yard, a minimum of 30% of 

the front yard must remain as landscaped area. 

e) Secondary and garden suites shall not be subject to separation from the 

principal dwelling through a condominium conversion or subdivided title. 

f) Secondary and garden suites must have full utility services through service 

connection from the principal residence.  

g) The Development Authority shall consider the following matters as part of the 

decision making process for an application for a Secondary or garden suite: 

i. The potential effect of the development on the privacy of adjacent 

properties; 

ii. The on-site and neighbourhood impact on parking and traffic; and  

iii. The compatibility of the use in relation to the siting, grade 

elevations, height, building types and materials characteristic of 

surrounding development. 

2) Secondary Suite Regulations 

a) A secondary suite shall not exceed 40% of the gross floor area of the 

principal building, including upper floors and basement combined or 80m2 

whichever is less. 

22



b) The secondary suite must have a separate access either through entryway 

from the exterior of the dwelling or through a separate entrance within a 

common landing. 

c) A separate entrance door to a secondary suite shall not be located on any 

front building elevation facing a public street. Notwithstanding this, a single 

entry door providing access to an enclosed, shared landing area from which 

both the main dwelling unit and the secondary suite gain access, may be 

located on any front building elevation facing a public street. 

4. Four (4) parking stalls, including the detached garage, are indicated on the submitted 

Site Plan. As well as on-street parking. 

5. The submitted Site Plan shows a front yard setback of 3.592 m and does not meet the 

minimum setback in the front yard of 6.0 m as required in the Land Use Bylaw. 

Therefore the home is considered non-conforming. 

6. In the Land Use Bylaw Section 67 Non-Conforming Uses and Buildings points 4 & 5 

state: 

4) A non-conforming use of part of a building may be extended throughout the 

building, but the building, whether or not it is a non-conforming building, shall not 

be enlarged or added to and no structural alterations shall be made thereto or 

therein. 

5) A non-conforming building may continue to be used but the building shall not be 

enlarged, added to, rebuilt or structurally altered except: 

a. As may be necessary to make it a conforming building, or  

b. As the Development Authority considers necessary for the routine 

maintenance of the building, or 

c. If, at the discretion of the Development Authority, the proposed 

development would not: 

i. Unduly interfere with the amenities of the neighbourhood, or  

ii. Materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment or value of 

neighbouring parcels of land, and 

iii. The proposed development conforms with the use prescribed for 

that land or building in this Bylaw. 

  

23



 

4 RECOMMENATION:           

 

1. MPC member       moved that Development Permit 
Application 19-DP-071 for a Secondary Suite be approved with the following conditions: 
 

1. The provisions of the Town of Redcliff’s Land Use Bylaw (1698/2011); 
2. Approval by the Development Authority does not exclude the need and/or 

requirements of the Applicant to obtain any and all other permits as may be 
required by this or any other legislation, bylaw, ore regulation; 

3. The Development Authority may, by notice in writing, suspend a Development 
Permit where development has occurred in contravention to the terms and 
conditions of the permit and /or Land Use Bylaw; 

4. One off street parking stall to be for the exclusive use of the Garden Suite; 
5. Any exterior changes must compliment or enhance the outside of the building. 
 

 

24




